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          2                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABO: Good afternoon

          3  everyone. Welcome to today's hearing for Civil

          4  Service and Labor.  My name is Joe Addabo, and I

          5  have the honor of chairing this Committee and

          6  welcome you all here.  Today the Civil Service and

          7  Labor Committee will take up an oversight hearing on

          8  Reso. 785, which calls upon the New York State

          9  Legislature to amend the Volunteer Ambulance Service

         10  Workers' Benefit Law to include independent

         11  volunteer ambulance workers who render aid at the

         12  request of the City.

         13                 In New York City, the primary source

         14  of emergency medical services is provided by the

         15  FDNY Emergency Medical Services, mostly through the

         16  911 system.  In addition, there are also 35

         17  independent volunteer ambulance companies in the

         18  City that are not affiliated with FDNY or any

         19  hospital, and they also provide localized service to

         20  our communities.

         21                 Under State law, volunteer ambulance

         22  workers and volunteer firefighters who are members

         23  of the companies that are under contract with the

         24  City are entitled to benefits similar to Workers'

         25  Compensation benefits for injury or death sustained
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          2  in the line of duty.  However, if an independent

          3  volunteer ambulance worker is injured or killed in

          4  the line of duty, that worker is not covered for

          5  benefits because no contract with the City exists.

          6                 Reso. 785 calls upon the State

          7  Legislature to acknowledge parody between all

          8  volunteer ambulance workers assisting others in the

          9  City by extending benefits under the New York State

         10  Volunteer Ambulance Workers' Benefit Law of 1988.

         11                 This is issue is especially

         12  significant for me, since I two volunteer ambulance

         13  corps in my district and five volunteer fire and

         14  ambulance corps in my district as well.

         15                 Let me state at this point, we

         16  acknowledge and thank all volunteer ambulance

         17  workers for their dedication and service for the

         18  City in aiding our residents and our constituents,

         19  and we thank them very much.

         20                 Today, I would also like to thank the

         21  staff who put this hearing together, to my right

         22  here, Harold Gates, Legal Counsel, to my left, Elisa

         23  Chae, Legal Counsel, Joan Povolny, our Policy

         24  Analyst, Jeff Gottlieb, my Legislative Aid, the

         25  Sergeant- at Arms who put this room together.  Thank
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          2  you.  I'd like to introduce a colleague Member of

          3  the Committee, Council Member Mike Nelson, and we

          4  have with us the prime sponsor of Reso. 785, Council

          5  Member David Weprin.

          6                 Council Member Weprin, good to have

          7  you at the Committee.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER WEPRIN: Good

          9  afternoon.  Thank you, Chairman Addabo and Members

         10  of the Committee.  My name is David Weprin, and as

         11  was pointed out, I am the prime sponsor of

         12  Resolution 785, which if passed in the State

         13  Legislature would allow for the City of New York to

         14  pay Workers' Compensation benefits for volunteer

         15  ambulance workers who are injured or killed in the

         16  line of duty.

         17                 This resolution is the first of my

         18  volunteer emergency services assistance plan bills,

         19  and it is my hope with your continued support that

         20  we as a body can institute changes that will benefit

         21  all volunteer first responders who have given so

         22  much to this City.

         23                 According to a Memorandum of

         24  Understanding agreed upon between the City of New

         25  York and the Regional Emergency Medical Services
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          2  Council of New York City, a non- profit corporation

          3  created pursuant to State law that is directly

          4  responsible for coordinating medical services in New

          5  York City, volunteer ambulance companies throughout

          6  the City are required to render emergency medical

          7  assistance when called upon by the New York City

          8  Fire Department and/or the New York City Office of

          9  Emergency Management during City- wide emergencies.

         10                 However, since volunteer ambulance

         11  companies lack a contract with the City, they are

         12  not considered to be eligible for Workers'

         13  Compensation benefits pursuant to the Volunteer

         14  Ambulance Workers' Benefit Law, which was passed by

         15  the New York State Legislature in 1988.  This law

         16  provides benefits similar to Workers' Compensation

         17  to members of volunteer ambulance companies and

         18  their families in the event of injury or death

         19  sustained in the line of duty.  Under a law similar

         20  to the Volunteer Ambulance Workers' Benefit Law, the

         21  New York State Volunteer Firefighters Benefit Law of

         22  1957, volunteer firefighters in the City receive

         23  benefits similar to Workers' Compensation.

         24                 This resolution is calling upon the

         25  Legislature to amend the Volunteer Ambulance

                                                            7

          1  COMMITTEE ON CIVIL SERVICE AND LABOR

          2  Workers' Benefit Law dating back to 1957 to create

          3  parody between the benefits offered to active duty

          4  volunteer firefighters who are injured or killed in

          5  the line of duty and independent volunteer ambulance

          6  workers who render assistance at the City's request

          7  who have also been injured, or, God forbid, died

          8  while on duty.

          9                 Volunteer first responders are a

         10  invaluable resource to the City of New York.  They

         11  do not do this for money.  They do not do this for

         12  glory.  They do this because they care deeply about

         13  their fellow New Yorkers.  It is incumbent upon the

         14  City Council to take the first steps towards

         15  ensuring that our volunteers get the financial

         16  security that comes with knowing that they will be

         17  taken care if they sustain injuries or pass away in

         18  the course of their duties.

         19                 I am proud to announce that my

         20  brother, Assemblyman Mark Weprin is the prime

         21  sponsor of comparable legislation in the State

         22  Assembly, Assembly Bill 7644, which I strongly

         23  support.

         24                 I urge the Committee, when

         25  appropriate, to pass this Resolution, and I want to
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          2  thank Chairman Addabo for his strong support, and

          3  for his preceding on this hearing today.  Thank you.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Council Member

          5  Weprin, I want to thank you very much for your

          6  efforts on the issue of volunteer ambulance workers,

          7  and of course for the work on this reso, Reso 785.

          8  Currently there are approximately 11 sponsors.

          9  We're hopeful for more.  Again, I am proud to be one

         10  of them, but, again, thank you very much, Council

         11  Member Weprin, for your efforts.

         12                 Our first panel, Nancy Benedetto from

         13  the Regional EMS Council of New York City, and

         14  joining Ms. Benedetto is Ryan Gunning, New York

         15  State Volunteer Ambulance and Rescue Association.

         16                 Thank you very much for being here

         17  today.  Just please state your name for the record

         18  and give your testimony please.

         19                 MS. BENEDETTO: Am I on now?  Thank

         20  you, Chairman Addabbo and Committee members.  Good

         21  afternoon, I am Nancy Benedetto, Executive Director

         22  of the Regional Emergency Medical Services Council

         23  of New York City, which represents the interests of

         24  75 regional ambulance agencies, those which are

         25  hospital- based, are private ambulance agencies,
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          2  FDNY- EMS, and 36 volunteer EMS agencies.  We

          3  strongly support the City Council's resolution to

          4  amend the Volunteer Ambulance Workers' Benefit Law

          5  to include volunteers who render aid at the request

          6  of our City.

          7                 Our volunteer agencies operate

          8  throughout the City providing emergency care and

          9  transport to the members of their immediate

         10  communities, and when called upon to all residents

         11  of our City.

         12                 Long before the creation of a

         13  municipal ambulance service, volunteer ambulance

         14  agencies responded to medical emergencies for the

         15  residents of our City.  With your support, they will

         16  continue to do so for many years to come.

         17                 Volunteer ambulance agencies receive

         18  calls for help directly from their communities.

         19  Most have participated in our City's 911 EMS System

         20  through the Mutual Aid Response System better know

         21  as MARS.  MARS is overseen by our municipal sector,

         22  FDNY- EMS, and is used to assign 911- generated

         23  calls to volunteer units as needed.

         24                 After the terrible events of

         25  September 11th, 2001, it became clear that although
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          2  mutual aid has always existed, agreements

          3  formalizing City- wide responses had to be

          4  developed. The Regional EMS Council, working with

          5  representatives from OEM, FDNY- EMS, volunteers,

          6  hospital- based and private ambulance agencies,

          7  developed and implemented the Regional Mutual Aid

          8  Mobilization System.  This mutual aid system

          9  provides a uniform procedure for the request and

         10  utilization of hospital- based, proprietary and

         11  volunteer ambulance resources for mutual aid during

         12  times when additional resources are needed to manage

         13  an incident within New York City.  This formalized

         14  MOU ensures a reliable and safe response by

         15  ambulance resources from New York City EMS agencies

         16  to any incident within our City.  The Mutual Aid

         17  Mobilization System can be, and has been, activated

         18  by OEM and FDNY- EMS.  One such activation occurred

         19  during the Northeast blackout in 2003.  Our

         20  volunteers answered that request for assistance,

         21  responding in a diligent and effective manner.

         22                 Our volunteers are a precious

         23  resource, and we must do all in our power to promote

         24  their growth.  The 2,700 plus volunteers here in New

         25  York City are willing to give of themselves, and
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          2  deserve better than to be forgotten in a life-

          3  altering or life ending injury.

          4                 Recruitment of volunteers is an issue

          5  State- wide. Providing the protection stated in this

          6  resolution will greatly assist the growth of

          7  volunteerism in New York City.

          8                 In summary, we support this

          9  resolution to amend the Volunteer Ambulance Workers'

         10  Benefit Law to include members of our New York City

         11  volunteer ambulance agencies.  We firmly believe

         12  that there should be parody for our volunteer

         13  ambulance agencies equal to the benefits offered

         14  their brethren in New York State and the nation for

         15  the past 20 years.

         16                 As a result of the MOU that was

         17  signed by the Regional EMS Council, by OEM and FDNY-

         18  EMS, there is an implied contract that exists for

         19  our volunteer ambulance agencies which clearly

         20  reinforces the need for volunteers of this City to

         21  be protected when they answer the call to protect

         22  their fellow New Yorkers.

         23                 The continued ability of all of our

         24  ambulance agencies to work together is something to

         25  be protected and fostered.  Thank you for your time
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          2  and consideration.

          3                 MR. GUNNING: Thank you, Nancy.  My

          4  name is Ryan Gunning.  I am the Chairman of the New

          5  York State Volunteer Ambulance and Rescue

          6  Association for District 4, New York City region.

          7                 I'm not going to mimic basically  --

          8  I represent the volunteer ambulance agency

          9  throughout the City, which include the volunteer

         10  fire departments, the college- based EMS units,

         11  first response units, and recently, the auxiliary

         12  police support units.

         13                 With this bill, as Nancy stated, the

         14  main things for us is recruitment and retention.  It

         15  will help recruitment ten fold.  Many of the members

         16  who join volunteer ambulance agencies join to get

         17  their experiences and then move on to voluntary

         18  hospital systems, into the Fire Department, EMS

         19  system, and through that we sort of lose the

         20  membership.  Members are afraid to then work for the

         21  volunteers in fear of getting hurt, not being

         22  covered, not having some kind of safety.  With this

         23  benefit law, we could keep these members.  The

         24  retention of these members  --  They'll have some

         25  type of benefit and it will effect us all.
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          2  Recruitment --  We can new members in.  This will

          3  something we can offer to the members.

          4                 This is a great bill.  I thank

          5  Councilman Weprin and his staff who are doing an

          6  amazing job, and thank Councilman Addabbo for having

          7  us here today, and I thank REMSCO who has been

          8  totally supportive of this.  Thank you.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  I thank you

         10  both for your time and testimony.  We do have

         11  questions.  Before I get to questions from Council

         12  Member Weprin, which I know his time is limited, I

         13  just want to make a statement that you both mention

         14  the word recruitment, and Mr. Gunning, you brought

         15  it one step further.  You said retention as well.  I

         16  think this is absolutely of utmost importance for

         17  recruitment and retention.  So I agree with you

         18  totally.  Ms. Benedetto, you had mentioned parody

         19  which really is well fairness is what we're asking

         20  for, just to put us on the same level as coverage

         21  for other volunteers, and I think fairness is really

         22  what we're asking for here and I see there should be

         23  no reason not to have the parody, or the fairness.

         24  So I agree with you as well on that issue.  Council

         25  Member Weprin.

                                                            14

          1  COMMITTEE ON CIVIL SERVICE AND LABOR

          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER WEPRIN: Yes.  I want

          3  to thank both of you for your leadership in helping

          4  out as volunteers and recruiting other volunteers.

          5  As Mr. Gunning knows, every year around 9/11, or

          6  shortly thereafter, I have a ceremony here at City

          7  Hall to honor the volunteers because sometimes we

          8  forget how important the volunteers are, and they

          9  don't always get the same recognition that the

         10  uniformed, paid employees get for the City.  We

         11  can't forget that they play such an important role.

         12  September 11th was a shocking reality as to the

         13  value that the volunteers played, and anything I can

         14  do in my small way to show recognition and to show

         15  appreciation and we can do for the volunteers is

         16  really so important.

         17                 What I would hope we can do is pass

         18  this resolution and then maybe go up to Albany

         19  together, or have some kind of press event or rally

         20  to kind of put pressure on Albany to act because as

         21  you know so much of what we do depends on Albany

         22  legislation, and this is one of them.  I think if we

         23  work together with Albany, I think we can get this

         24  done.

         25                 MS. BENEDETTO: I agree.
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          2                 MR. GUNNING: I hope so.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER WEPRIN: Thank you.

          4                 MR. GUNNING: Thank you.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Just a couple of

          6  quick questions.  First to REMSCO, you had mentioned

          7  in you testimony the Memorandum of Understanding,

          8  and we know there needs to be a contract with the

          9  City for the coverage to kick in.  That's correct?

         10                 MS. BENEDETTO: I'm sorry.  The  --

         11                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: In order for

         12  benefits to kick in, there needs to be some type of

         13  contract with the City?

         14                 MS. BENEDETTO: Yes, basically what

         15  I'm stating is that there really is an implied

         16  contract.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: I'm sorry.

         18                 MS. BENEDETTO: I'm stating that there

         19  actually is an implied contract.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Right.

         21                 MS. BENEDETTO: And that exists by

         22  virtue of the MOU that presently is in place.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Being a lawyer

         24  as well, we know the sometimes implied contracts are

         25  not the strongest.  How many people who make a
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          2  decision about the coverage are considering this

          3  implied contract to be the actual contract with the

          4  City?  Is it considered a contract with the City or

          5  not?

          6                 MS. BENEDETTO: It's actually a  --  I

          7  don't know if it's really considered  --

          8                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: It's a gray

          9  area.

         10                 MS. BENEDETTO: I am not clearly an

         11  attorney.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Right.  It's not

         13  clear cut. That's why I think we should  --

         14                 MS. BENEDETTO: It's clearly not.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: This resolution,

         16  then of course, the legislation on the State level

         17  would be helpful.

         18                 MS. BENEDETTO: Absolutely.  It is

         19  absolutely helpful.  I will state that in many

         20  meetings that I am involved in where we are writing

         21  City- wide plans for coastal evacuations, pandemic

         22  flu, or any results of other terrorist activities,

         23  our volunteer ambulance agencies and our providers

         24  are part of those plans.  The City has accepted that

         25  piece of it.  So it depends on how broadly we can
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          2  extend that implied contract concept.  That's up to

          3  some other individuals to figure out.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: This is true.

          5                 MS. BENEDETTO: They're clearly in our

          6  plans.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Ms. Benedetto,

          8  who are the members of REMSCO?  Who actually makes

          9  up REMSCO?

         10                 MS. BENEDETTO: REMSCO is an

         11  organization that was authorized by the State Public

         12  Health Law.  It is comprised of members of all of

         13  our EMS agencies, various other organizations that

         14  have expertise to assist in the delivery of health

         15  care in New York City.  So we have sitting on our

         16  REMSCO, on our regional council, members of the

         17  volunteer corps, private agencies, hospital- based

         18  agencies, the Fire Department has several seats,

         19  Greater New York Hospital Association, so that we

         20  have continuity with the hospitals, the Fire

         21  Department, Police Department, medical people.  So

         22  it is rather extensive.  It's a 30- body group, and

         23  it is to form a consensus of how we treat and

         24  provide appropriate care to the citizens of New York

         25  City.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: And are these

          3  members appointed to REMSCO?  How is the application

          4  work to get on the board?

          5                 MS. BENEDETTO: We have two various

          6  groups.  There are 16 members that are assigned

          7  through their specific organization such as the ones

          8  that I just mentioned to you, and then there are 14

          9  at- large seats, and those individuals are elected

         10  based on their expertise that they can bring to the

         11  table.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Okay.  Any

         13  questions from Council Members at this time?

         14  Question for our vollies, and again, I appreciate

         15  your time here today.  How often do we have injuries

         16  in the line of duty, or unfortunate deaths?  Is it a

         17  common occurrence?  Is it not that common, but when

         18  it does happen, it's severe?

         19                 MR. GUNNING: Well fortunately, there

         20  haven't been many deaths within the City of New

         21  York.  There have been a couple, not recently.

         22  Since 9/11, there haven't been any, that I am aware

         23  of, line of duty death in New York City itself.

         24                 As far as injuries, again, we're all

         25  independent volunteers so what injury that maybe
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          2  taking them out of their job, I'm sure an exact

          3  number, but again, a lot of the ambulance corps do

          4  not have this benefit so how they handle it may  --

          5  If you are hurt, and you don't have this type of

          6  coverage, you may not necessarily say you're hurt,

          7  and that's the problem.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: To your point

          9  that if you're not covered, you're going to have to

         10  deal with it differently, and it may differ from

         11  volunteer ambulance corps to the other, but let's

         12  talk about not having this coverage.  If this

         13  resolution was not to pass, if the State legislature

         14  was not to pass, it's up the individual ambulance

         15  corps, independent volunteer ambulance corps, to get

         16  this coverage.  Correct?

         17                 MR. GUNNING: Correct.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Out of their own

         19  budget?

         20                 MR. GUNNING: It depends on how many

         21  ambulances you have, how many members you have.

         22                 I'm also the Chief of the Glendale

         23  Volunteer Ambulance Corps, and we pay approximately

         24  $10,600 dollars a year for the coverage.  I know the

         25  Chief of Throggs Neck is here, and he has paperwork,
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          2  which I'm not sure if he is going to testify, but he

          3  pays over $8 or $9 thousand dollars a year for their

          4  coverage.  So it does vary per agency as to how many

          5  ambulances they have and how many members.

          6                 It's very expensive, and for

          7  volunteers who don't get any guaranteed funding,

          8  this is a very big chunk of money.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: That's a good

         10  point to make, Mr. Gunning, and let's be perfectly

         11  clear.  The independent volunteer ambulance corps

         12  don't have a dedicated revenue stream.  It's not

         13  like you're out there and you're a profit

         14  organization going out there and gaining revenue.

         15  Basically, you rely on donations, and smaller types

         16  of fundraising.  So when you talk about $10,000

         17  dollars a year, or even $8,000 dollars a year, there

         18  is a large chunk of your obligation financially, and

         19  it's for your members.

         20                 MR. GUNNING: And that's on top of

         21  approximately $25 to $30,000 dollars for regular

         22  insurance for vehicles.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Right, plus the

         24  other overhead associated with it.  It's costly.  No

         25  question about it.  So this would tremendously help
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          2  you financially, but more so than financial

          3  assistance with this State legislature, it would be,

          4  again, the right thing to do by your members.  So

          5  again, we look forward to advocating with you on the

          6  State level as we look to pass the State

          7  legislation.

          8                 I'd like to welcome two of our

          9  Committee members who have joined us, Council Member

         10  Jim Gennaro, and Council Member Melissa Mark-

         11  Viverito.  Thank you very much for being here.

         12                 Any further questions for this panel?

         13                 I want to thank you both for your

         14  time and testimony, and we look forward to working

         15  with you on this issue.

         16                 MS. BENEDETTO: Thank you very much.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Thank you.

         18                 MR. GUNNING: Thank you.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Our next panel

         20  will be a panel of three, Martin Grillo from the

         21  Emergency Medical Rescue of New York City, Angel

         22  Acevedo, Assistant Chief, and Chief Peter Fernandez.

         23                 While our panel is settling in, we're

         24  going to do a little business here.  We need to vote

         25  out Reso. 738.  Resolution 738 is a resolution that
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          2  supports federal legislation which would fund

          3  programs to assist those who have fallen ill as a

          4  direct result of September 11th, and the 9/11

          5  attacks.  We are in full support of this federal

          6  legislation which would give much needed funding to

          7  help those who are ill from 9/11, and it also

          8  recognizes, this federal legislation does, that 9/11

          9  was not only a City tragedy, but also a federal,

         10  national tragedy, and I think that's important as

         11  well.  We're going to call the roll for a vote on

         12  Reso. 738, and the Chair recommends an affirmative

         13  vote.

         14                 COUNCIL CLERK: Addabbo.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Yes.

         16                 COUNCIL CLERK: Nelson

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON: Aye.

         18                 COUNCIL CLERK: Gennaro.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENNARO: Mr. Chairman,

         20  I just wish to speak briefly on my vote.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Sure.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENNARO: I just want

         23  to thank you, Mr. Chairman, for your leadership.

         24  This is one more step that you've taken to recognize

         25  those that serve with valor and with distinction
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          2  without any thought to their own well- being who

          3  came out and did the needful, and I want to thank

          4  you for bringing this to the Council and bringing

          5  this forward and all of the co- sponsors that are

          6  behind this resolution.  I am happy to be one of

          7  those co sponsors.  I also wish to state on the

          8  record that I am thankful to Senator Clinton for

          9  bringing this forward in the Senate and hope that it

         10  goes forward.  So with that said, I thank you, Mr.

         11  Chairman, and I proudly vote aye.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Thank you,

         13  Council Member Gennaro.

         14                 COUNCIL CLERK: Mark-Viverito

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARK-VIVERITO: Aye.

         16                 COUNCIL CLERK: Okay.  That's four in

         17  the affirmative, no negative, no abstentions, and

         18  Reso. 738 is adopted.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Thank you very

         20  much, Council Members.  Thank you very much.

         21                 We will continue our hearing now on

         22  Reso. 758. Again, for our independent volunteer

         23  ambulance corps, and gentlemen, thank you very much

         24  for being here today.  Just please state your name

         25  for the record and your testimony please.
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          2                 MR. GRILLO: Chairman Addabbo and

          3  esteemed Council Members, my name is Martin Grill.

          4  I am the Chief of Emergency Medical Rescue of New

          5  York City.  I'd like to thank the City Council for

          6  the opportunity to speak to you today on behalf of

          7  the New York City Volunteer EMS community, which is

          8  comprised of approximately 30 volunteer ambulance

          9  corps, 13 volunteer fire departments and two basic

         10  life support response teams.

         11                 The volunteer EMS services consist of

         12  very dedicated members of the community.  Amongst

         13  our members our doctors, lawyers, teachers.  They

         14  run the gamut of every profession imaginable,

         15  including paid police, fire and EMS employees who

         16  give of their own spare time.  Although they have

         17  careers, families and other responsibilities, they

         18  give selflessly of their time and efforts to serve

         19  their communities and the people of the City of New

         20  York on a volunteer basis.

         21                 The volunteer EMS community provides

         22  a vital service to this City.  They serve as

         23  valuable first responders to various emergency calls

         24  in the community, and they are often called upon on

         25  a mutual aid basis to assist the City in large
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          2  events such as the tragic events of September 11th.

          3  The volunteer EMS members respond to calls in a

          4  professional manner without hesitation or thought to

          5  their well- being at times.  If injured, who will

          6  take care of the caregivers?  Due to the expense,

          7  which could be as much $10,000 dollars a year, or

          8  ten to 15 percent of the budget of an EMS squad,

          9  this type of insurance is often prohibitive.  Since

         10  only a few squads that can afford the cost of this

         11  insurance, our volunteers are putting their health

         12  and well- being at risk, as well as jeopardizing

         13  their families future every time they go out to help

         14  one of our citizens in need.

         15                 The volunteer EMS community deals

         16  with financial challenges on a daily basis.

         17  Insurance, fuel, vehicle maintenance, equipment and

         18  rent are just a few of the expenses they need to

         19  meet just to keep these vital services available to

         20  their community. The contribution from the

         21  communities that these services squad have not kept

         22  up with increasing costs required to keep these

         23  squads in operation.  Anything that could decrease

         24  the burden and help protect those who selflessly

         25  give of their own time and effort would be a welcome
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          2  relief.

          3                 We ask that you support Resolution

          4  785 calling upon the New York State Legislature to

          5  amend the Volunteer Ambulance Workers' Benefit Law

          6  to include the volunteer ambulance workers who

          7  provide their services in the City of New York.

          8  This gesture will show the recognition and

          9  appreciation of the City for the service of the

         10  volunteer corps and provide our members with a

         11  safety net by which to secure their well- being and

         12  their family's future as they continue their service

         13  to this great City.  I thank you in advance for your

         14  support.

         15                 MR. FERNANDEZ: Hello.  My name is

         16  Peter Fernandez. I'm the Chief of Operations at the

         17  Throggs Neck Volunteer Ambulance Corps.  I'd like to

         18  thank everybody for allowing us to speak.

         19                 We're a very small organization.  We

         20  started in 1979 when the ambulance service was very

         21  poor in the City.  We started our 28th year in May

         22  of last year, and we pay over $8,000 dollars a year

         23  in Workers' Comp.  Our operating budget is about $60

         24  to $70,000 dollars a year.  It's a big chunk.  It's

         25  like ten to 15 percent of our budget.  Whatever help
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          2  we can get from the City, whether it's in an

          3  emergency, in mutual aid, whatever could help out

          4  the individual small ambulance corps like ours  --

          5  We're the only one in the Bronx.  That's it.  There

          6  is no other ambulance corps in the Bronx.  We are

          7  it.  So that's why we felt that we had to be here at

          8  least to say something because we are the only guys

          9  in the Bronx.

         10                 These other people here really

         11  represent us through the districts and stuff like

         12  that, but we do really want to make you guys aware

         13  that we really do need some help.  Money isn't

         14  coming in as it used to.  People don't volunteer.

         15  They have no concept of what volunteering means

         16  nowadays.  We get people in, we can't retain them

         17  because they go onto paying jobs in the EMS system.

         18  Nobody wants to volunteer.  Nobody wants to help out

         19  the little guys.  Thank God we get good support from

         20  our community and whatever little grants we get here

         21  and there really keep us alive. We have a membership

         22  of 54 people, 24 to 25 people are active.  We have

         23  people who are in different positions where they're

         24  just training or they are just getting into it to

         25  see what's it's about. We also get all kinds of
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          2  crack- pots that come in that want to wear badges,

          3  that what to get into things and we try to eliminate

          4  people like that that are out there just for that

          5  kind of stuff.

          6                 I just want to let you people know

          7  that we are the little guys.  We are not the big

          8  city.  We are the guys that the City calls when they

          9  need us.  We're always there, every emergency in our

         10  area.  We have a lot of low- lying areas in our area

         11  where there is private, very small streets, and our

         12  ambulances are van type.  We're the only ones that

         13  could really service that area. The City has the big

         14  ambulances.  They can't get down the streets. I know

         15  I'm just going on here, but we do need help.  Each

         16  ambulance corps has its own major problems

         17  especially with money.  Thank God we have a nice

         18  community in Throggs Neck in the Bronx that the

         19  people do care, and we just need your support.

         20  We've been giving our support for 28 years.  We just

         21  need some support from the City, State or whoever

         22  can give us some support.  I keep reiterating that

         23  we are the only volunteer ambulance corps.  That is

         24  sad.  There is only one in the Bronx.  There was

         25  eight at one time  We were the last guys to start up
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          2  and we're the only ones left.  Whatever you guys do

          3  for us, we'd greatly appreciate it.  Thank you very

          4  much.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Thank you,

          6  Chief.

          7                 MR. ACEVEDO: My name is Angel

          8  Acevedo.  I'm Assistant Chief for the Throggs Neck

          9  Bronx Ambulance Corps.  The Chief told you many of

         10  our problems.  Since and prior to 9/11, we have

         11  responded to every major blackout, brownout.  During

         12  9/11, we staffed not one but both of our ambulances

         13  for several days, day and night.  We have

         14  participated in community events.  We also teach CPR

         15  and first aid every year.

         16                 As everybody's talking about fuel

         17  consumption, and a greener New York, both ambulances

         18  run on diesel fuel.  We need to be able to get to

         19  and from every call and respond.  Also our members

         20  need to be trained on how to operate emergency

         21  vehicles properly and safely so that we can respond

         22  to and from calls appropriately and as needed.

         23                 We have serviced tirelessly with

         24  conviction in an effort to service the Throggs Neck

         25  section.  As the Chief said, we have low- lying
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          2  areas.  During the last big Nor'easter, we got

          3  everybody up.  We made phone calls.  We had our base

          4  staffed and we stayed open in case the City called,

          5  or in case we received any calls from the community.

          6    We were notified by the Regional EMS Council and

          7  we were asked to standby and we did.  We were on

          8  duty. We had EMT's on standby.  We notified.  We

          9  have our own system. It's just a shame that this has

         10  taken so long.

         11                 I would like to thank you guys for

         12  your efforts. It's appreciated.  Thank you to the

         13  Committee.

         14                 Again, like the Chief has said, it's

         15  been one ambulance squad in the Bronx for a long

         16  time.  We have serviced without any compensation.

         17  Myself, I have been personally hurt while on a call.

         18    I had to go to my own personal doctor to take care

         19  of that, which was an expense on myself and my

         20  family, but I did it, and I returned back to work.

         21  Thank you.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Thank you.

         23  Thank you very much, Mr. Acevedo.  Again, we

         24  appreciate you being here because you laid out,

         25  obviously, the role that you play in the community,
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          2  and we appreciate that, and you are there when

          3  called to help us.  So, again, we thank you for your

          4  volunteer work, and it truly is volunteer work.

          5  Volunteers do what they do not because they are paid

          6  to do, but because they want to do, and we

          7  appreciate you being there when called.

          8                 I'm going to ask certain questions of

          9  all three of you.  If all three of you can chime in,

         10  that would be great.  How many members do you have

         11  in your corps?

         12                 MR. FERNANDEZ: We have 54 members,

         13  and 24 to 25 of them are active.

         14                 MR. GRILLO: Ours is run a little

         15  differently.  We have about a dozen active members

         16  of the organization, but since we are a first

         17  response unit, we do special events.  We have

         18  agreements with numerous ambulance corps who provide

         19  EMT's, or we have mutual aid with the ambulance to

         20  the transportation component of the event.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: I appreciate you

         22  mentioning that because the first response is an

         23  interesting concept.  For many, and I know for the

         24  volunteer ambulance corps in my district, because of

         25  an area that may be geographically isolated, you are
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          2  first response in many instances.  Correct?

          3                 MR. ACEVEDO: Yes.

          4                 MR. FERNANDEZ: Sure.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: You obviously

          6  work well with FDNY and NYPD as you secure an area

          7  until they get there.  You are first responders.

          8                 MR. FERNANDEZ: Yes.

          9                 MR. GRILLO: Yes, sir.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Often enough,

         11  would you say more than 51 percent?  The majority of

         12  your calls, are you first response?

         13                 MR. ACEVEDO: Yes.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Do you have

         15  insurance? Obviously, you don't have the coverage

         16  yet.  That's what we are fighting for here.  If you

         17  have the insurance, how much does it cost you per

         18  year?

         19                 MR. GRILLO: At this point, we don't

         20  have coverage like that.

         21                 MR. FERNANDEZ: We pay close to about

         22  $30,000 for all our insurance.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: So that's

         24  vehicle and  --

         25                 MR. FERNANDEZ: Vehicle, Workers' Comp
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          2  and other insurance that we carry just for our

          3  memberships so that they don't get stuck for

          4  anything terrible.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: And that amount?

          6    I'm sorry, Chief.

          7                 MR. FERNANDEZ: $30 to $40 thousand.

          8  Around there.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Do you know how

         10  much for Workers' Comp?  Do you break that out?

         11                 MR. FERNANDEZ: Since 9/11, it's been

         12  growing  --

         13                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: $8,000

         14                 MR. FERNANDEZ:   --  $8,000 dollars

         15                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Right.  That was

         16  the $8,000 figure.

         17                 MR. FERNANDEZ: Well, it's probably

         18  about $9,000 dollars now, but it's $8,000 every

         19  year, for the past three years.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Okay.  Again,

         21  given the role that you play, it's almost the

         22  invisible safety blanket that we have.  Again, I

         23  appreciate it because it's in my district, but I

         24  thank you very much for your volunteerism, and of

         25  course the first response, and the aid that you give
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          2  our City residents.  We thank you for your service

          3  and we're only hopeful that with this resolution, we

          4  can get some positive results up in Albany, and you

          5  get what you deserve, parody and fairness that other

          6  volunteers get.  So we're hopeful, and we look

          7  forward to working with you.

          8                 Any other questions, Council Member

          9  Melissa Mark Viverito.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARK-VIVERITO: Hi.

         11  Thank you, Mr. Chair.  Just for the sake of

         12  understanding because I'm not fully aware of the

         13  volunteer services.  The training that you receive,

         14  is it the same training that EMS workers or other

         15  ambulance  --  it is?

         16                 MR. FERNANDEZ: All of our EMT's are

         17  state- certified, the same thing as the City

         18  ambulances.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARK-VIVERITO: So it

         20  goes through the same training process.

         21                 MR. FERNANDEZ: Same training.  It's

         22  all state tested.  Everybody has to take.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARK-VIVERITO: Okay.

         24  Then you're saying you're finding it more difficult

         25  now to recruit.  What has been usually the
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          2  recruitment mechanism?

          3                 MR. FERNANDEZ: People join a

          4  volunteer ambulance because they get some experience

          5  doing 911 calls, which are police calls and stuff

          6  like that, from the Fire Department or the Police

          7  Department.  They get a wealth of experience.  Then

          8  they take it back to the City.  They join the City,

          9  or they join a private ambulance company, and they

         10  just wind up doing transports for elderly people,

         11  and they wind up coming back to do 911 calls with

         12  us, or they go to the 911 system themselves.

         13                 MR. GRILLO: To give you an example

         14  how valued the volunteer experience is to New York

         15  City, currently there is a shortage of EMT's who are

         16  fit.  FDNY, their willing to give six months of

         17  experience for one year of service.  So if the Fire

         18  Department hires you with five years of volunteer

         19  experience, you will get two and a half years of

         20  experience, which will start you at two and half

         21  years higher salary.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARK-VIVERITO: So

         23  they're recruiting from within your ranks.

         24                 MR. GRILLO: Right, but unfortunately,

         25  the basis of a lot of the people who  --  I myself
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          2  started in 1978.  I started out as a volunteer, got

          3  my EMT, worked for voluntary hospital, then worked

          4  for EMS and it was a stepping stone.  I haven't

          5  stopped volunteering.  Even when I became a Port

          6  Authority Police Officer, we had ambulances, and my

          7  skills were called to use at that.  So it's

          8  something that you start out as a volunteer you'll

          9  take through the rest of your life.  It's almost

         10  thirty years now that I've been doing this.

         11                 MR. FERNANDEZ: The time goes like

         12  that.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARK- VIVERITO: Thank

         14  you.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABO: Thank you very

         16  much, Council Member Melissa Mark- Viverito.  To

         17  your point, you are a training ground for those who

         18  do become part of our NYPD, FDNY, EMS, and we thank

         19  you for that as well.  That is a good point.  Many

         20  do become full- time City workers so we appreciate

         21  that.  Mr. Acevedo.

         22                 MR. ACEVEDO: Thank you.  Just to also

         23  reiterate, there's a lot of training that goes on

         24  also, Madam.  Besides every three years all EMT's

         25  are required to recertify, which means we have to

                                                            37

          1  COMMITTEE ON CIVIL SERVICE AND LABOR

          2  re- go through a class, learn any new procedures or

          3  protocols.

          4                 MR. FERNANDEZ: All the new protocols

          5  that come out.

          6                 MR. ACEVEDO: And if for instance just

          7  a few months back I just recertified again for like

          8  my fourth time, but every three years you must

          9  recertify and prove to the State of New York that

         10  our skills are up to par and that we are aware of

         11  protocols --

         12                 MR. FERNANDEZ:  --  We are equal to

         13  EMS.

         14                 MR. ACEVEDO:  --  To everyone.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARK- VIVERITO: And

         16  then in terms of the people that are on the corps,

         17  what's the average number of hours they put in a

         18  month?

         19                 MR. FERNANDEZ: We require two tours

         20  per month and they are six hour tours.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARK- VIVERITO: So

         22  twelve hours a month.

         23                 MR. FERNANDEZ: Minimum.  You can put

         24  in seven days a week if you wanted to, but minimum

         25  you have got to give us two tours per month.  Some
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          2  people have a hard time doing that.

          3                 MR. ACEVEDO: Now I would also like to

          4  point though that we do have members who have

          5  received awards for over a thousand hours in a year.

          6    So that's the kind --

          7                 MR. FERNANDEZ: Close to 2,000  --  We

          8  have some people that achieved that.

          9                 MR. ACEVEDO: So we have several of

         10  our senior staff members who have gotten awards for

         11  1,000 hours, 1,500 and even 1,750 in one year.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARK- VIVERITO: Now,

         13  do you find that --  You are saying that you are

         14  having difficulty recruiting people.  Is that also

         15  translating into the City?  Is the City having

         16  difficulty finding --

         17                 MR. FERNANDEZ: Yes.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARK- VIVERITO: Okay.

         19     So you see this is where it would be great if

         20  they could partner up with the volunteer corps and

         21  you know let people know through maybe an ad

         22  campaign that this is an opportunity to start

         23  building up the experience to then go  --  It would

         24  interesting to see how why that hasn't happened.

         25                 MR. GRILLO: We have tried to, but
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          2  unfortunately, we're treated as a stepchild.  Many

          3  years ago in the late '70's, early '80's  --  dating

          4  myself  --  there was something started called the

          5  Mutual Aid Radio System, which was at the time a way

          6  for New York City to get federal funding for the

          7  upgraded air communication system, and back then

          8  they gave us some radios that they pulled out of

          9  their old ambulances and there was a network.

         10  Actually, for many years it was a workable system.

         11  As they upgraded their communication system, they

         12  gave us radios.  There used to be a roll calls.

         13  Unfortunately, ever since the merger, the

         14  cooperation between the volunteer sector and the

         15  FDNY- EMS has not been as good as when it was

         16  private under HHC.  There are times that the radios

         17  are unmanned.  There's nobody contacting you.  They

         18  keep us as  --  Again, they know they're like an ace

         19  in the hole if they need us, but on a day- to- day

         20  basis instead of calling us when we could help them

         21  out  --  We're majorly underutilitzed.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARK- VIVERITO: That

         23  really is a shame.

         24                 MR. FERNANDEZ:    --  But that's the

         25  Fire Department.  That want everything for
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          2  themselves.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARK- VIVERITO: Right.

          4    Well, gentlemen, thank you very much.  I

          5  appreciate it.  Mr. Chair, thank you.  I hope that

          6  in whatever ways we can be supportive.  I think that

          7  building stronger linkages is in the benefit of all

          8  of us.  So hopefully we can be supportive in that

          9  end.  Thank you.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Council Member,

         11  thank you very much.  We've been joined by a

         12  Committee member, Councilman Larry Seabrook.

         13  Council Member Seabrook, good to see you.

         14                 Gentlemen, again, thank you very much

         15  for your volunteerism, and again, like I said,

         16  whether you consider it the invisible security

         17  blanket or the unrecognized security blanket. You

         18  are out there watching over us and protecting us

         19  when called upon, and on behalf of this Committee,

         20  we appreciate that.  So to the volunteers that you

         21  represent, to the volunteers throughout the City,

         22  thank you.  We appreciate your time.

         23                 We look forward, as a Committee, to

         24  voting on Resolution 758 at hopefully our next

         25  hearing, and then of course it will go to the full
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          2  Council.  So we're hopeful as soon as possible

          3  getting this message up to Albany.  So again, thank

          4  you very much.

          5                 MR. GRILLO: Thank you.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: That being the

          7  end of our testimony, that is the end of this

          8  hearing.  Have a great day everyone.  Meeting

          9  adjourned.

         10                 (Hearing concluded at 1:52 p.m.)
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